

**PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE
MERKANTI HOLDING P.L.C. €25,000,000 4% SECURED BONDS DUE 2026
(ISIN: MT0002291202)**

These are the proposed amendments to the Terms and Conditions of the €25,000,000 4% Secured Bonds due 2026 (ISIN: MT0002291202) which are being proposed for approval by the bondholders at the meeting of bondholders which shall be held at The Ballroom, Hyatt Regency, 77 Sqaq Lourdes, San Ġiljan STJ 3311, Malta on 3 July 2023 at 10:00hrs. Notice has been mailed to the Bondholders on the Company's bondholder register at the Central Securities Depository of the Malta Stock Exchange as at close of business on the 11 June 2024, this being the 'Record Date' and only these Bondholders shall have the right to participate and vote at the Bondholders' Meeting on the proposed amendments outlined below.

...

8. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE BONDS

8.1 General

For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions the following words and expressions shall bear the following meanings:

<u>Bonds</u>	<u>the 5.70% secured bonds due 2033 (ISIN: MT0002291202) originally issued by the Issuer in terms of the Prospectus;</u>
<u>Interest Payment Date</u>	<u>12 August of each year (including 12 August 2025) and the Maturity Date (or if any such date is not a Business Day, the next following day that is a Business Day);</u>
<u>Maturity Date</u>	<u>12 August 2033;</u>
<u>Prospectus</u>	<u>the Prospectus dated 18 July 2019 originally published by Merkanti Holding p.l.c. in respect of the €25,000,000 4% Secured Bonds Due 2026 (ISIN: MT0002291202).</u>

All other capitalised terms used but not defined herein shall bear the meanings originally assigned to them in Prospectus.

The Bonds ~~(ISIN: MT0002291202) will be issued on~~ are subject to the Terms and Conditions as set out below, and all subscribers (or purchasers from time to time) of the Bonds are deemed to have knowledge, accept and be bound by the Terms and Conditions.

8.2 Currency and Denomination, Form and Title

8.2.1 Currency and Denomination

The Bonds ~~will be~~ are issued in Euro. The Nominal Value of each Bond (denomination per unit) will be €100. The aggregate principal amount of Bonds that the Issuer may issue pursuant to this Prospectus is €25,000,000, divided into 250,000 Bonds of €100 each.

8.2.2 Form and Title

The Bonds ~~are to be~~ issued in fully registered and dematerialised form without coupons and are represented in uncertificated form by the appropriate entry in the CSD Register. There ~~will be~~ are entered in the CSD Register, the names, addresses, identity card numbers (or details of some other

official document in the case of natural persons), registration numbers (or details of some other official document in the case of companies), and account details of the Bondholders and the particulars of the Bonds held by them respectively. Bondholders will ~~also~~ have, at all reasonable times during business hours, access to the CSD Register for purposes of inspecting information held on their respective accounts. Each Bondholder consents to the Issuer having a right to obtain, from the CSD Register, any available information on the Bondholders including contact details and their holdings of Bonds.

Title to the Bonds ~~shall be~~ evidenced by an electronic entry in the CSD Register. The CSD will issue, upon a request by a Bondholder, a statement of holdings to a Bondholder evidencing that Bondholder's entitlement to Bonds held in the register CSD Register. Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, the Issuer shall be entitled to treat the person in whose name a Bond shall be registered in the CSD Register as the absolute owner thereof for the purpose of making payment and for all other purposes, regardless of any notice of any nominee relationship or trust.

8.3 Status

The Bonds (their repayment and the payment of interest thereon) ~~shall~~ constitute the general, direct, unconditional obligations of the Issuer to the Bondholders, secured in the manner described in Section 8.4 below, and shall at all times rank *pari passu*, without any priority or preference among themselves. The Bonds shall rank subsequent to any other prior ranking indebtedness of the Issuer.

8.4 Security

8.4.1 Pledges and German Law Mortgages

The obligations of the Issuer to the Bondholders under the Bonds will be secured by means of the Security in favour of the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondholders, in accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed and the relevant Security Documents. Specifically, the Bonds will be secured by means of the Pledges and the German Law Mortgages. ~~Until the German Law Mortgages are registered in the German land register, the Bondholders will instead be secured by the Interim Pledge of Bond Proceeds. Provided that the Trustee receives confirmation in writing issued by its German legal counsel that the German Law Mortgages have been properly perfected in accordance with German law (by no later than the Longstop Date), the Trustee shall release the Interim Pledge of Bond Proceeds.~~

8.4.2 Release of Security

In accordance with the terms of the Trust Deed, each of the Property Companies shall have the right, upon a written request to the Trustee, to have all or part/s of the German Real Estate released from the effects of the relevant German Law Mortgage and/or to have all or part of the Deposited Monies pledged under the relevant Pledge of Deposited Monies Agreement/s released to them, in the specific circumstances set out in the Trust Deed (as described in Section 6.5.2 ~~above~~ of the Prospectus).

8.4.3 Enforcement of Security

The Security may be enforced by the Trustee upon the Bonds becoming immediately due and payable upon an Event of Default as described in Section 8.15 below.

8.5 Restrictive Covenants

8.5.1 Restriction on Dividends

The Issuer covenants not to declare or pay any dividend, purchase or redeem any of its own shares except if from the proceeds of a new issue of shares made for such purpose (each, a “**Restricted Payments**”), unless:

- (a) The 'Interest Cover Ratio' (i.e. the Issuer's profit before tax income and before interest expense divided by the Issuer's interest expenses for the same period) calculated on the basis of the Issuer's most recent financial statements, after adjusting to take into consideration the impact of the proposed Restricted Payment, is above 3.0x; and
- (b) Debt-to-Total Capital Ratio' (i.e. the Issuer's interest-bearing borrowings by the Issuer's total capital, with total capital being the sum of interest-bearing borrowings plus total equity) calculated on the basis of the Issuer's most recent financial statements, after adjusting to take into consideration the impact of the proposed Restricted Payment, is below 60%.

8.5.2 Negative Pledge by the Property Companies

The Property Companies have, pursuant to the Trust Deed, covenanted to the Trustee (for the benefit of the Bondholders) that neither of them shall, for as long as any principal or interest under the Bonds or any of them remains outstanding, create any other mortgage or security interest ranking *pari passu* with or subsequent to the German Law Mortgages on all or any part of the German Real Estate, except where (a) such mortgage or security interest arises in virtue of any law or (b) a release of security has occurred in accordance with Section 8.4.2 above, with respect to the part of the German Real Estate so released from the German Law Mortgage.

8.6 Interest

8.6.1 Interest Rate and Interest Payment Dates

Each Bond shall bear interest on its outstanding principal amount at a rate of (a) four percent (4%) per annum up to (but excluding) 12 August 2024 and (b) five point seven percent (5.70%) per annum from (and including) the ~~Interest Commencement Date~~ 12 August 2024 up to (but excluding) the Maturity Date. Interest shall be payable in arrears in Euro on each Interest Payment Date and on the Maturity Date. ~~The first payment of interest shall be made on the first Interest Payment Date. In the event that any Interest Payment Date falls on a day other than a Business Day, the relevant Interest Payment Date will be the first following day which is a Business Day.~~

8.6.2 Accrual of Interest

Interest on the Bonds will accrue on a daily basis ~~from the date of issue~~ on the basis of a three hundred and sixty (360) day year divided into twelve (12) months of thirty (30) days each, and in the case of an incomplete month, the number of days elapsed. Interest shall cease to accrue on each Bond on the day preceding the Maturity Date unless payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused or unless the Issuer defaults in respect of payment, in which event, interest shall continue to accrue at a rate of ~~four~~ five point seven percent (4%)(5.70%) per annum until the date of payment thereof.

8.7 Yield

~~The~~ As from 12 August 2024, the gross yield, calculated on the basis of the interest rate of the Bonds, the Issue Price, and the redemption value (at Nominal Value) of the Bonds on the Maturity Date, is ~~four~~ five point seven percent (4%)(5.7%).

8.8 Payments

- 8.8.1 The Issuer will discharge all of its payment obligations under the Bonds by making payments to the accounts of the respective Bondholders indicated in the CSD Register. The Issuer has no responsibility or liability for the records relating to, or payments made in respect of, holdings of Bonds through the CSD.

- 8.8.2 Repayment of the principal amount of the Bonds will be made in Euro on the Maturity Date by the Issuer to the person in whose name such Bonds are registered as at the close of business on the Maturity Date, together with interest accrued up to (but excluding) the Maturity Date. The Issuer shall not be responsible for any loss or delay in transmission. Upon repayment of the principal the Bonds shall be redeemed and the appropriate entry made in the CSD Register.
- 8.8.3 In the case of Bonds held subject to usufruct, payment will be made against the joint instructions of all bare owners and usufructuaries. Before effecting payment, the CSD shall be entitled to request any legal documents deemed necessary concerning the entitlement of the bare owner/s and the usufructuary/ies to payment of the Bonds.
- 8.8.4 Payment of interest on a Bond will be made to the person in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of business on the relevant Interest Payment Date.
- 8.8.5 All payments with respect to the Bonds are subject in all cases to any pledge (duly constituted) of the Bonds and to any applicable fiscal or other laws and regulations. In particular, but without limitation, all payments by the Issuer in respect of the Bonds may be made gross of any amount to be deducted or withheld for or on account of any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or other government charges of whatsoever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of the Government of Malta or any other authority thereof or therein having power to tax.
- 8.8.6 No commissions or expenses shall be charged by the Issuer to Bondholders in respect of such payments. The Issuer shall not be liable for charges, expenses and commissions levied by parties other than the Issuer.
- 8.8.7 Any claim against the Issuer by Bondholders in connection with all payments due to them in respect of the Bonds shall be prescribed (time-barred) upon the lapse of five (5) years from the day on which an action in relation to the same can be exercised.

8.9 Redemption

~~8.9.1~~ Unless previously redeemed in accordance with the terms of this Section (or purchased and cancelled in accordance with Section 8.10 below), the Bonds shall be redeemed at their Nominal Value on the Maturity Date.

~~8.9.2 If the German Law Mortgages are not registered by the Longstop Date, this will constitute an Event of Default and (in accordance with Section 8.15 below) the Bonds shall automatically be redeemed as of the Longstop Date and the Trustee shall notify the Issuer of the Event of Default in accordance with the provisions of the Interim Pledge of Bond Proceeds Agreement without the need for a meeting of the Bondholders or any other action to be taken by the Trustee or the Bondholders. The Issuer shall, promptly following any such notice from the Trustee, pay to Bondholders the Nominal Value of their Bonds together with interest accrued and unpaid on the Bonds until the Longstop Date, and the funds held in the Interim Bank Account (in addition to any further amounts required to be paid by the Issuer in order to meet its obligations to Bondholders in full) shall be applied by Merkanti Bank (on the instructions of the Trustee) for this purpose.~~

8.10 Purchase and Cancellation

To the extent allowed by law, the Issuer may at any time purchase Bonds in the open market or otherwise and at any price. All Bonds purchased by or on behalf of the Issuer ~~will be cancelled and may not be re-issued or re-sold. Any Bonds so surrendered for cancellation may not be reissued or resold~~ may be

re-sold by the Issuer within a period of sixty (60) days and, if they are not re-sold within such period, they will be cancelled and the obligations of the Issuer in respect of any such Bonds shall be discharged.

8.11 Transferability

- 8.11.1 The Bonds are freely transferable in accordance with applicable laws and the rules and regulations of the MSE.
- 8.11.2 Any person becoming entitled to a Bond in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Bondholder may, upon such evidence being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the CSD, elect either to be registered himself as holder of the Bond or to have some person nominated by him registered as the transferee thereof. If the person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered himself, he shall deliver or send to the CSD a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects. If he shall elect to have another person registered he shall testify his election by executing to that person a transfer of the Bond.
- 8.11.3 All transfers and transmissions are subject in all cases to any pledge (duly constituted) of the Bonds and to any applicable laws and regulations.
- 8.11.4 The cost and expenses of effecting any trading or transfer in the Bonds on the MSE shall be at the charge of the Bondholder or at the charge of such person as the rules and regulations of the MSE may from time to time determine.
- 8.11.5 As the Bonds will be held at the CSD, investors will have to rely on its procedures for transfers. The CSD will not register the transfer or transmission of Bonds for a period of fifteen (15) days preceding the due date for any payment of principal or interest on the Bonds.

8.12 Further Issues

~~The Issuer may from time to time, without the consent of the Bondholders, incur further debt or issue further bonds or other securities. Although the amount of Bonds that may be issued under this Prospectus is limited to €25,000,000, there is no other restriction on the amount of debt that the Issuer may incur (whether through the issuance of securities or otherwise). Accordingly, the Issuer may incur additional indebtedness (other than the indebtedness incurred in relation to the issue of the Bonds) without the consent of the Bondholders.~~

8.13 Meetings of the Bondholders

For all intents and purposes any meeting of Bondholders, including but not limited to meetings held for the purposes set out in Section 8.14 below, shall be held in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed (as described in this Section 8.13). In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of these Terms and Conditions and the Trust Deed (whether in relation to Meetings of Bondholders or otherwise), the provisions of the Trust Deed shall prevail.

- 8.13.1 The Trustee, in accordance with the provisions set out in the Trust Deed, may at any time and at the cost of the Issuer, prior to exercising any power or discretion hereunder, may:
- (a) call a meeting of the Bondholders; or
 - (b) write to all Bondholders requesting their instructions or directions;

Provided that the Trustee shall not be liable for any action it may deem necessary to take prior to acting in accordance with this paragraph 8.13.1 and the Trustee shall not be bound to act on behalf of the Bondholders under the Trust Deed unless it receives duly authorised instructions or directions as stipulated in the Trust Deed.

- 8.13.2 A meeting of the bondholders may also be convened, at any time, by the Issuer.
- 8.13.3 A meeting of the Bondholders shall also be convened by the Trustee on the requisition of one (1) or more Bondholders holding in aggregate, at the date of the deposit of the requisition, not less than ten percent (10%) of the Nominal Value of Bonds, for the time being outstanding.
- 8.13.4 In case of a requisition of a meeting, the requisition shall state the objects of the meeting and shall be signed by the requisitionist/s and deposited at the registered office of the Trustee and may consist of several documents in like form each signed by the requisitionist, or if there is more than one (1) requisitionist, in any one document by all of them.
- 8.13.5 If the Trustee does not, within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionist/s may convene a meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Trustee, but a meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three (3) months from the date of the deposit of the requisition.
- 8.13.6 At least fourteen (14) days' notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is given and of the day of the meeting) of the meeting shall be given to the Bondholders. The notice shall specify the date, time and place of the meeting as well as the general nature of the resolution/s being proposed and to be tabled at the meeting. The notice shall also explain how Bondholders may appoint proxies.
- 8.13.7 Notice of every meeting of the Bondholders shall be given to:
- (a) every Bondholder;
 - (b) the Issuer;
 - (c) each of the Property Companies;
 - (d) the Trustee; and
 - (e) the auditor/s for the time being of the Issuer.
- 8.13.8 No person other than those listed in paragraph 8.13.7 shall be entitled to receive notice.
- 8.13.9 The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to or the non-receipt of notice of a meeting, by any person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate the proceedings of a meeting.
- 8.13.10 A meeting of the Bondholders shall have power, with the approval of a majority of Bondholders, holding not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in Nominal Value of the Bonds held by those Bondholders present at the meeting or at any adjourned meeting thereof, as the case may be, to do any of the following:
- (a) to assent to any proposal for modification of the Trust Deed and/or any of the Security Documents and/or the Terms and Conditions, as put forward by the Issuer and/or the Trustee;
 - (b) to authorise any person or persons to concur in and execute all such documents and do all such acts and things as may be necessary to carry out and give effect to any resolution passed with the approval of a majority of Bondholders, holding not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in Nominal Value of the Bonds held by those Bondholders present at the meeting or at the adjourned meeting, as the case may be;
 - (c) to remove the Trustee or any subsequent trustee and to approve a person to be appointed as trustee in its stead;

- (d) to authorise the Trustee and/or any of its directors, officers, delegates or appointees to concur in and execute and do all such documents, instruments, acts and things as may be necessary to carry out and give effect to any resolution passed with the approval of a majority of Bondholders, holding not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in Nominal Value of the Bonds held by those Bondholders present at the meeting or at the adjourned meeting, as the case may be;
- (e) to discharge or exonerate the Trustee and/or any of its directors, officers, delegates or appointees from all liability in respect of any act or omission for which the Trustee and/or any of its directors, officers, delegate or appointees may have become responsible under the Trust Deed provided that it shall not be permissible for the Trustee and/or any of its directors, officers, delegates or appointees to be exonerated from the effects of their own fraud, wilful misconduct or gross negligence; and
- (f) to appoint any persons (whether or not Bondholders) as a committee/s to represent the interest of the Bondholders and to confer upon such committee/s any powers or discretions which the Bondholders could themselves exercise.

8.13.11 No business shall be transacted at a meeting of the Bondholders unless a quorum is present, in person or by proxy, at the commencement of the meeting.

8.13.12 At any such meeting, three (3) or more Bondholders present in person or by proxy and holding or representing not less than fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds outstanding at the time will form a quorum for the transaction of business. If within half an hour (30 minutes) from the time appointed for the commencement of the meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting, howsoever called, shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the same time and place or to such other day and place as the chairman of the meeting may decide and if at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not yet present within half an hour (30 minutes) from the time appointed for the meeting, the Bondholders present shall constitute a quorum.

8.13.13 For the purpose of an adjourned meeting, it shall not be required to send notices anew, provided that all persons entitled to receive notice for the original meeting shall be informed of the adjournment and the time and place of the adjourned meeting.

8.13.14 The chairman of a meeting of the Bondholders shall be a director of the Trustee or such other person as the Trustee may nominate in writing from time to time. The chairman of an adjourned meeting need not be the same person as the chairman of the original meeting. At the commencement of any meeting, the chairman may lay down the procedures which shall be adopted for the proceedings of that meeting. Such procedure shall be binding on the meeting.

8.13.15 Each matter submitted to a meeting shall be decided by a show of hands unless a poll is (before or following the result of the show of hands) demanded by the chairman or three (3) Bondholders in person or by proxy. On a show of hands, every Bondholder shall have one (1) vote and on a poll every Bondholder shall have one (1) vote for each Bond held and any fractional interests shall be disregarded. Voting, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, shall be taken in such manner as the chairman of the meeting shall direct.

8.13.16 Unless a poll be so demanded, a declaration by the chairman that a resolution has on a show of hands been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost and an entry to that effect in the minute book is made, it shall be conclusive evidence of the fact without need for the proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution.

8.13.17 Any vote to be taken at a meeting (except for choosing a chairman) shall only be decided upon

by means of an resolution passed with the approval of a majority of Bondholders holding not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in Nominal Value of the Bonds held by those Bondholders present at the meeting or at any adjourned meeting thereof, as the case may be.

8.13.18 Any resolution passed with the required majority at any meeting shall be binding on all ~~Beneficiaries~~**Bondholders**, whether or not present at the meeting, and whether or not voting, and each of them shall be bound to give effect to it accordingly.

8.13.19 Minutes shall be made of all resolutions and proceedings at every meeting and, if purporting to be signed by the chairman of that meeting or of the next succeeding meeting, shall be conclusive evidence of the matters in them.

8.13.20 A resolution in writing signed by or on behalf of all the Bondholders who for the time being are entitled to receive notice of a meeting, which resolution in writing may be contained in one document or in several documents in like form each signed by or on behalf of one (1) or more of the Bondholders, shall be valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Bondholders duly convened and held.

8.13.21 The instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposited at least seventy-two (72) hours before the time fixed for the meeting at such place as the Trustee shall designate or approve and, in default it shall not be valid unless the chairman of the meeting decides otherwise before the meeting proceeds to business. The instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing signed by the appointer or the appointer's attorney. A proxy holder need not be a Bondholder.

8.14 Amendments to Terms and Conditions

8.14.1 The provisions of the Terms and Conditions of the Bonds may be amended by the Issuer with the approval of a majority of Bondholders, holding not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in Nominal Value of the Bonds held by those Bondholders present at a meeting of the Bondholders called for that purpose or at any adjourned meeting thereof, as the case may be.

8.14.2 In the event that the Issuer wishes to amend any of the provisions set out in these Terms and Conditions, it must call a meeting of the Bondholders for this purpose. Subject to having obtained the necessary approval by the said Bondholders at a meeting of the Bondholders as set out above, any such proposed amendment or amendments to the provisions of the Terms and Conditions shall subsequently be given effect to by the Issuer.

8.15 Events of Default and Enforcement

8.15.1 Without prejudice to Section 8.15.2 below, the Trustee may, in its discretion, and shall, upon the request by Bondholders holding not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in Nominal Value of the Bonds held by those Bondholders present at a meeting of the Bondholders or at any adjourned meeting thereof, as the case may be, give notice to the Issuer that the Bonds are, and shall accordingly immediately become, due and payable at their Nominal Value together with interest accrued on the occurrence of any of the following events (each, an '**Event of Default**') and without the need of any authorisation and/or confirmation from a competent court in the event that:

- (a) the Issuer fails to pay any interest on any Bond when due and such failure shall continue for sixty (60) days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Issuer by the Bondholders; or

- (b) the Issuer fails to repay any principal on any Bond when due and such failure shall continue for sixty (60) days after written notice thereof shall have been given to the Issuer by the Bondholders; or
- (c) the Issuer and/or any of the Property Companies, as applicable, fail to perform or observe any material covenant, material condition or material obligation contained in these Terms and Conditions, the Prospectus, the Trust Deed or any of the Security Documents (other than any obligation for the payment of principal or interest in respect of the Bonds) and such failure is incapable of remedy or is not remedied within sixty (60) days after notice of such default shall have been given to the Issuer; or
- (d) the Issuer and/or any of the Property Companies is deemed unable or admits its inability to pay its debts as they fall due or otherwise becomes insolvent; or
- (e) the Issuer and/or any of the Property Companies stops or suspends payments (whether of principal or interest) with respect to all or any class of its debts or announces an intention to do so or ceases or threatens to cease to carry on its business or a substantial part of its business; or
- (f) the Issuer and/or any of the Property Companies is adjudicated or found bankrupt or insolvent, or an order is made by any competent court, or a resolution is passed by the Issuer or any other action is taken for the dissolution, liquidation, or winding-up of the Issuer;~~or.~~

~~(g) the German Law Mortgages are not duly registered in the German land register by the Longstop Date.~~

~~8.15.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 18.5.1 above, should an Event of Default arise under paragraph (g) of Section 8.15.1, the Bonds shall (in accordance with Section 8.9 above) automatically be redeemed as of the Longstop Date and the Trustee shall notify the Issuer of the Event of Default in accordance with the provisions of the Interim Pledge of Bond Proceeds Agreement without the need for a meeting of the Bondholders or any other action to be taken by the Trustee or the Bondholders. The Issuer shall, promptly following any such notice from the Trustee, pay to Bondholders the Nominal Value of their Bonds together with interest accrued and unpaid on the Bonds until the Longstop Date, and the funds held in the Interim Bank Account (in addition to any further amounts required to be paid by the Issuer in order to meet its obligations to Bondholders in full) shall be applied by Merkanti Bank (on the instructions of the Trustee) for this purpose.~~

~~8.15.3~~8.15.2 Any notice, including any notice declaring Bonds due shall be made by means of a written declaration delivered by hand or registered mail to the registered office of the Issuer.

~~8.15.4~~8.15.3 At any time after notice has been given to the Issuer by the Trustee that the Bonds shall have become immediately due and payable in accordance with Section 8.15.1 above, the Trustee may, in its sole discretion, institute such proceedings as it may think fit against the Issuer to enforce repayment of the principal together with accrued but unpaid interest, including the enforcement of any or all of the Security, provided that the Trustee shall not be bound to do so unless it shall have been (a) so requested by Bondholders holding not less than sixty-six and two-thirds percent (66 2/3%) in Nominal Value of the Bonds held by those Bondholders present at a meeting of the Bondholders called for that purpose or at any adjourned meeting thereof, as the case may be, and (b) indemnified by the Bondholders to its satisfaction.

~~8.15.5~~8.15.4 Only the Trustee may enforce the provisions of the Trust Deed and of the Terms and Conditions set out in this Prospectus, and no Bondholder shall be entitled to enforce performance of any such provisions unless the Trustee, having become bound to proceed as

described in Section 8.15.³² above, fails to do so within a period of sixty (60) days after becoming so bound.

8.16 Notices

Notices to the Bondholder shall be mailed to them at their respective addresses contained in the CSD Register and shall be deemed to have been served at the expiration of three (3) calendar days after the date of mailing. In proving such service it shall be sufficient to prove that a prepaid letter containing such notice was properly addressed to such Bondholder at the address contained in the CSD Register.

8.17 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

8.17.1 Governing Law

The Bonds, all the rights and obligations of the Bondholder and the Issuer, and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Bonds, ~~shall be~~ governed by and are to be construed in accordance with Maltese law.

8.17.2 Jurisdiction

The Courts of Malta shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any disputes that may arise out of or in connection with the Bonds, all the rights and obligations of the Bondholder and/or the Issuer, and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Bonds. The Issuer and the Bondholders hereby irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Courts of Malta to hear and determine any proceedings and to settle any dispute which may arise out of, or in connection with the Bonds.

Each of the Issuer and the Bondholder waives any objection to the Maltese Courts on grounds of inconvenient forum or otherwise as regards proceedings in connection herewith and agrees that a judgment or order of such a Court shall be conclusive and binding on it and may be enforced against it in the Courts of any other jurisdiction.

...